Beaufort County Sheriff's Office

Deputy Report for Incident 195050424

19PR04467
Nature: Water Emergency Address: MALECON DR; ARCHERS
CREEK
Location: Shell Point SC 29935
Offense Codes:
Received By: Caparulo, A How Received: 9 Agency: BCSO

Responding Officers: Krapf, T, Malphrus, J, USCG, Keener, J, Jambriska, A, DNR, Domino, S, Reynard, S, McKinney, C,
Heany, K, Andersen, N
Responsible Officer: Keener, J Disposition: CLO 02/25/19
When Reported: 02:26:51 02/24/19 Occurred Between: 02:26:12 02/24/19 and 02:26:13 02/24/19

Assigned To: Detail: Date Assigned: **/**/**
Status: Status Date: **/#%/** Due Date: **/#%/**
Complainant:
Last: First: Mid:
DOB:  *#/**/%* Dr Lic: Address:
Race: Sex: Phone: City: ,
Offense Codes
Reported: Observed:
Circumstances
L3MOB L3(In car Recording)Rspnsbl 40345/ KEENER 1III
L3MO3 L3(In car Recording)Rspndg 40287/ KRAPF
L3MO3 L3(In car Recording)Rspndg 38430 / MALPHRUS
L3MO3 L3(In car Recording)Rspndg 38335/ JAMBRISKA
ASSDN Assist Dept Natural Resources
Responding Officers: Unit :
Krapf, T A29
Malphrus, J Al4
USCG USCG
Keener, J A49
Jambriska, A A78
DNR DNR
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Domino, S A67
Reynard, S 310
McKinney, C 332
Heany, K 305
Andersen, N 334
Responsible Officer: Keener, J Agency: BCSO
Received By: Caparulo, A Last Radio Log: #¥ #% %% %k vk
How Received: 9911 Line Clearance: RPT Report
When Reported: 02:26:51 02/24/19 Disposition: CLO Date: 02/25/19
Judicial Status: VIEW Occurred between: 02:26:12 02/24/19
Misc Entry: 1lbs and: 02:26:13 02/24/19
Modus Operandi: Description : Method :
Involvements
Date Type Description
02/24/19 Name DOUGHTY, MORGAN LOUISE Passenger
02/24/19 Name BEACH, MALLORY MADISON Victim
02/24/19 Name MURDAUGH, PAUL TERRY Passenger
02/24/19 Name COOK, KEITH ANTHONY JR Passenger
02/24/19 Name COOK, CONNOR MARTIN Passenger
02/24/19 Name ALTMAN, MILEY ELAINE Passenger
02/24/19 Cad Call 02:26:51 02/24/19 Water Emergency Initiating Call
03/07/19 Property Compact Disc 0 Property
03/05/19 Property Compact Disc 0 Property
03/05/19 Property Compact Disc 0 Property
02/28/19 Property Compact Disc 0 Property
02/27/19 Property Compact Disc 0 Property
02/24/19 Property WHI Boat SEA HUNT 17FT 0 Vehicle Unit 1
02/24/19 Property WHI Boat SEA HUNT 17FT 0 Property
03/07/19 Evidence DVD-R OF ICDVS Evidence Incident
03/05/19 Evidence 1 CD OF 911 RADIO & LOGS Evidence Incident
03/05/19 Evidence CD w/911 audio and reports Evidence Incident
02/28/19 Evidence DVD of In Car Video Evidence Incident
02/28/19 Evidence CD of 911 Audio Evidence Incident
05/21/19 DS Mark Tinsley Subpoena
05/16/19 DS RANDELL STONEY FOIA
05/02/19 DS E. Mitchell Griffith FOIA
05/02/19 DS E. Mitchell Griffith Subpoena
04/04/19 DS MICHAEL DEWITT FOIA
04/02/19 DS Francis Ervin FOIA
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03/22/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/18/19
03/12/19
03/07/19
03/06/19
03/05/19
03/01/19
02/28/19
02/27/19

DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS
DS

Marah Brock

Molly Roecker

Billy Tyson

Jeffery Williams
Daniela Mencos

Alex Littlehales
ASHLEY REEVES
Gray Garwood
Gooding and Gooding
Charles Macloskie
ASHLEY REESE
Moss Kuhn and Fleming
DNR Hammond

FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
Report Request
FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
FOIA
DNR
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Narrative

Beaufort County Sheriff's Office
Investigation Narrative

Synopsis:
On 02/24/2019 at approximately 0226 hours BCSO received a report of a Water
Emergency in Archers Creek.

General:

Dispatch advised that there were six people on board the boat but one female
was still missing and unaccounted for. While en-route the USCG, DNR, Beaufort
Marine Rescue, EMS and Fire Department were summoned.

Officers Actions / Observations:

I responded to the RC Berkeley Bridge on Malecon Dr. Parris Island, SC
29935. I located a 17ft Sea Hunt beached under the bridge with one female,
Morgan Doughty sitting inside bleeding from her hand. Keith Cook, Connor Cook,
Miley Altman and Paul Murdaugh were located on the bank by the boat. It was
learned that Mallory Beach was still unaccounted for and in the water and did
not have a life jacket on. BCSO and PMO walked the bank searching for Beach but
were unable to locate her.

Through speaking with the occupants I was able to ascertain that they left the
downtown day dock and were on the way back home. They took Archers Creek to cut
through to the Broad River when they struck a piling at the RC Berkeley Bridge.
After hitting the piling the boat was turned to the right and beached itself at
the base of the bridge. During the collision with the piling, Mallory Beach was
ejected from the boat into the water. Connor Cook also sustained a laceration to
his jaw and Morgan Doughty sustained a laceration to her hand. The other three
occupants also sustained minor injuries/cuts. Connor Cook, Miley Altman, Paul
Murdaugh and Morgan Doughty were transported to Beaufort Memorial Hospital by
EMS. Kevin Cook declined to be transported. It is unclear at this time whether
Connor Cook or Paul Murdaugh was driving the boat. All occupants of the boat
were under age and were intoxicated.

SSgt Malphrus also responded and made notifications to the command duty. After
DNR arrived, the scene was turned over to them. At this time Mallory Beach has
not been located.

DNR Case#: 19-02-0944
Port Royal Case#: 19PR04467
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Supplement
Sgt T. Krapf

General Information:

On 02/24/2019 at approximately 0226 hours, BCSO responded to Archers Creek
at the R. C. Berkeley Bridge aboard Parris Island Recruit Depot, South Carolina
in reference to a Water Emergency.

Officer's Observations / Actions:

While responding to the scene, Dispatch advised a boat containing six
occupants had struck the bridge and one nineteen year old female was unaccounted
for. Upon arriving on scene, I only observed one white male with an apparent
laceration to the lip area and one female standing at the base of the bridge.

Cpl Keener and I ran under the bridge where we observed the boat on the
bank. I noted the boat had damage to its front left side. I observed a white
female (Morgan Doughty) sitting in the boat. Cpl Keener and I began walking
along the edge of Archers Creek attempting to locate the missing female;
however, we could not see or hear her.

I returned to the boat and waited with Morgan Doughty (bleeding from her
hand) for EMS to arrive.

I did not conduct any interviews pertaining to the events leading up to the
boat accident. I noted no statements were made by Morgan Doughty or others that
indicated she ever operated the boat. She was then transported to Beaufort
Memorial Hospital (955 Ribaut Road) for treatment.

Upon returning to the roadway, I noted a white male, one Keith Anthony Cook
(one of the occupants) was in contact with law enforcement. I then crossed the
bridge and walked along the opposite shoreline; however, I found no sign of the
missing person.

Marine Corps Recruit Depot's Provost Marshal's Office, Port Royal PD and
SCDNR responded to the scene. Port Royal PD assumed the missing person
investigation, and DNR assumed the boat accident investigation.

Evidence:
None

Disposition of Electronic Recording Device:
1. Sgt T. Krapf - Patrol Vehicle # 40287 - IDVS Activated

This supplemental report was completed by Sgt T. Krapf (Badge # K2263) on
02/27/2019 at 2001 hours.
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Supplement

On Febauary 24th (Monday) 2019 at approximately 0226 hrs, BSCO received a
call in reference to a water emergency in Archers Creek. Upon arriving on scene
at approximately 0240 hrs, I observed a white male, later identified as Keith
Cook, Jr. wearing only blue jeans and boots, walking on top of the RC Berkeley
Bridge located on Malacon Drive. I heard Keith crying and yelling "Mallory"
over and over again as he was walking down the bridge toward me. I made contact
with Keith and conducted a field interview with him

Interview with Keith Cook, Jr.

While speaking with Keith, I could tell that he was in shock and was only
worried about finding his girlfriend. After walking with Keith back and forth,
I was finally able to calm him down enough to get some information from him in
regards to the incident. Keith stated that he and some friends were out in the
river all day drinking. Later in the evening, they docked at the day dock
downtown Beaufort. Keith stated that he and his girlfriend, Mallory, stayed on
the boat while the rest of his friends went on land to drink some more. Once
they returned to the boat, Keith stated that he begged Paul Murdaugh, who was
driving the boat at the time of the incident, to please let him drive because he
was too intoxicated to drive. [Keith stated that Paul refused to let him drive.
Keith stated that once they entered Archers Creek, he sat on the bottom of the
boat and had Mallory sit in his lap to hold on because Paul was going too fast.
The next thing that Keith remembered was not too long after he and Mallory were
sitting in the bottom of the boat, he was in the water after the boat struck the
bridge. Keith stated that he swam around for about twenty minutes looking for
Mallory, yelling her name over and over but could not locate her. Keith stated
that he and his friends involved in the accident looked around for Mallory
before they called 911. Keith stated that Paul Murdaugh was last seen driving
the boat right before they crashed into the bridge.

Officers Notes:

While speaking with Keith, I was able to get him calm enough to sit in the
back of my patrol vehicle to keep warm with the door opened. While talking with
Keith, he observed Paul Murdaugh walking toward our direction. Keith
immediately became irate, yelling and cussing at Paul as he was walking by.
Keith identified Paul once again as the male driving the boat and notated again
that Paul was very intoxicated and should have not been driving the boat.

I sat with Keith keeping him company until his family arrived from Hampton
County. I advised Dispatch at approximately 0314 hours that my boy mic died.

ICDVS - 38422 - Activated.

L/Cpl Domino D3153. 02/28/20109.
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Supplement

Reference A:

On 02/24/2019 at approximately 0226 hours, BCSO received a report of a
Water Emergency in Archers Creek.

Deputy's Actions:

When I arrived on scene, I reported in to Sgt Krapf who was already on

scene and asked where I was needed. He told me to stay with 3 of the 4 kids
that were already out of the boat on land, among the 3 were Connor Cook, Paul
Murdaugh, and Miley Altman. I was informed by EMS that they needed the 3 to get
into one of the two ambulances so that they could be transported to Beaufort
Memorial Hospital, in order to be treated. Once the subjects were in the
ambulance, Murdaugh became very uncooperative and almost aggressive towards EMS
personnel. At that time, EMS requested that I ride to BMH with them to ensure
the safety of the patients and themselves. During the ride to BMH, no
information about the case was obtained. The only thing the subjects were
saying during the ride was requesting to know if their friend had been found
yet.

ICDVS:
Jambriska 38335 Activated

PFC Jambriska J5186 2/28/19 0205
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Supplement
Beaufort County Sheriff's Office
Supplemental Narrative

Synopsis:

On 02/24/2019 at approximately 0226, BCSO responded to the RC Berkeley Bridge
at Archers Creek in reference to a Boat Accident / Water Emergency. One out of
the six passengers was missing and unaccounted for.

Officers Actions / Observations:

After arriving on scene, I was met by Connor Cook, Miley Altman and Paul
Murdaugh at the base of the bridge standing together. I spoke with the three
briefly to get the name and clothing description of Mallory Beach, the missing
occupant. I then relayed to dispatch the missing occupant of the vessel was
Mallory Beach, she had blond hair and was last seen wearing a pink shirt, blue
jeans and was not wearing a life jacket. As we walked down to the base of the
bridge, PMO stopped at the boat with Morgan Doughty who was bleeding from her
hand. Sgt Krapf and I searched the area of the shoreline on either side of
the bridge down current but were unable to locate her. After walking
approximately 100 yards west down the creek towards the Broad River, the pluff
mud was too soft to walk on anymore. While searching the area, I was able to
follow a blood trail and foot prints from one of the other occupants. It led
from the boat, under the bridge and out into the marsh, as if one of them had
already been out looking for Mallory Beach. Once back at the boat, I noted that
Morgan Doughty appeared to be in shock from the accident and from the wound on
her hand that was still bleeding.

After going back up the hill, another PMO Officer was talking to Connor Cook,
Miley Altman and Paul Murdaugh. While trying to obtain their information, I
witnessed Paul Murdaugh on a phone call talking to someone. Paul appeared to be
highly intoxicated and was only wearing boxers. While on the phone talking to an
unknown individual, I heard him say something to the effect of, "We were runnin
hard and hit the Lemon Island / Callawassie Bridge. Mallory is gone and we can't
find her", as he started to sob.

I briefly spoke with Connor Cook and Miley Altman in an attempt to get some
more details, while Paul Murdaugh was on the phone standing beside them.

Interview with Connor Cook and Miley Altman:

They advised that they had gone to the day dock in downtown Beaufort that
evening. They then left and were on the way home when they hit the piling. After
they hit the piling, they attempted to search the area for Mallory Beach but
were unable to locate her. After approximately 20 minutes, they called 911 for
help. When asked who was driving, they stated they did not know.

Officers Actions / Observations:

I noted that the boat was completely beached out of the water on the rocks.
The left side of the bow was damaged and had a gaping hole in it. After looking
at the damage to the boat, it appeared that the boat struck the dolphin
"navigation aid / cluster of pilings spaced out from the bridge to mark the
channel" due to leaving a white scuff mark in it. Also, to the right of the
dolphin, one of the bridge pilings appeared to me missing some barnacles.

There was also blood on the left side of the bow and gunnel of the boat, near
the hole. In the back of the boat near the transom was a pool of blood.
Throughout the floor were droplets of blood. Morgan Doughty was sitting on the
bow facing backwards, towards the motor. She was holding her hand and had a pool
of blood between her feet where it appeared she had been sitting for some time.

The foot of the motor was approximately a foot away from the water and the tide
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was still pushing out. Also, one of the blades had been broken off the prop. Due
to the noise ordinance in downtown Beaufort, all bars and restaurants close down
at approximately 0130 to 0200 hours. Due to personal knowledge of the waterway,
it is approximately 9.5 miles by boat from downtown Beaufort to the RC Berkeley
Bridge in Archers Creek and takes approximately 15 minutes to get to. This is
the same time frame that is consistent with Connor's and Miley's statement of
leaving the day dock in Beaufort, being involved in the collision, looking for
Mallory Beach and then calling 911.

While waiting on Fire and EMS, we kept Keith Cook, Connor Cook, Miley Altman
and Paul Murdaugh together on the side of the roadway. When Paul Murdaugh
started to get near Keith Cook, I could see that Keith started to get loud and
angry while LCpl Domino was speaking with him.

Officer: Cpl Keener III Badge: K3934 Date: 02/27/2019
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Property

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:
Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:

Property Number:
Item:

113156
Compact Disc

$0.00

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc

$0.00

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Bibbins, M

$0.00

**:**:** **/**/**

(1)DVD-R # 13160 FROM OFFICERS ICDVS VEHICLE # 38422/FOIA COPY

113098
Compact Disc

$0.00

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc

$0.00

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Moreira, A

sk [k ook
03/05/19
$0.00

deck ok ek ok ek fkok

ONE (1) REDACTED CD WITH 911 AUDIO, 911 LOG, RADIO LOG, RADIO

TRANSMISSIONS

113107
Compact Disc

Owner Applied Nmbr:
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Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:
Year:

Meas:

Total Value:

$0.00

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc
$0.00

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Moreira, A

sk ok sk ook
03/05/19
$0.00

**:**:** **/**/**

ONE (1) REDACTED CD WITH 911 AUDIO, 911 LOG, RADIO LOG, RADIO

TRANSMISSIONS
112799
Compact Disc

$0.00

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc
$0.00

ok [k [k

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Moreira, A

sk [k ook
02/28/19
$0.00

ok ok ek ok ek fkok

ONE (1) CD WITH 911 AUDIO, 911 LOG, RADIO LOG, RADIO TRANSMISSIONS & CAD

REPORT
112692
Compact Disc

$0.00

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:
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Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:

Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:

Comments:

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:
Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc
$0.00

ok ok ek

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Bibbins, M

ok [k [k
ok ok [k

$0.00

ok dok ek sk [k fkok

(5)DVD-R # 13083/13084/13085/13086/13087 FROM OFFICERS ICDVS VEHICLE #

40287/38430/40345/38335/38422
112445
Boat

SEA HUNT
2006

$0.00

MURDAUGH ALEXANDER R 216105
BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc
$0.00

WAT Watercrafts

ACC

REGISTRATION#: SC-6998-BU
112445
Boat

SEA HUNT
2006

$0.00

MURDAUGH ALEXANDER R 216105
BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc
$0.00

WAT Watercrafts

ACC

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:

Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:

Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:

17FT
SXST3013H506

WHI

Keener, J

$0.00

**:**:** **/**/**

17FT
SXST3013H506

WHI

Keener, J
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Crime Lab Number:
Date Released: **/**/**
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments: REGISTRATION#: SC-6998-BU

Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

$0.00

**:**:** **/**/**
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Name Involvements:

Passenger : 216102

Last: First: MILEY Mid: ELAINE
w Dr Lic:_ Address: 755 MIXONS CORNER RD
Race: Sex: F Phone: (843)943-8778 City: FAIRFAX, SC 29827
Passenger : 216101
Last: COOK First: CONNOR Mid: MARTIN
OB:_ or Lic||| Address: 1104 LURAY HWY
Race: W Sex: M Phone: (803)942-1015 City: HAMPTON, SC 29924
Vietim : 216098
Last: BEACH First: MALLORY Mid: MADISON
os: || IEGEEN DrLic:- Address: 456 CO OP RD W
Race: W Sex: F Phone: City: HAMPTON, SC 29924
Passenger : 40236
Last: DOUGHTY First: MORGAN Mid: LOUISE
- Dr Lic: _ Address: 3 REDBUD WAY; ROSE DHU
CREEK PLANTATION

Race: Sex: F Phone: (843)368-1267 City: BLUFFTON, SC 29910

Passenger : 216100
Last: COOK First: Mid: ANTHONY

_ Dr Lic: Address: 997 POND TOWN RD

Race: Sex: M Phone: (803)913-1366 City: HAMPTON, SC 29924

Passenger : 216099
Last: MURDAUGH First: PAUL Mid: TERRY

os: |Gz Dr Lic: Address: 515 HOLLY ST E

Race: W Sex: M Phone: City: HAMPTON, SC 29924
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- PO. Box 21398
South Carolina Columbia, South Carolina

Law Enforcement Division 99991-1398

Henry D. McMaster, Governor Tel: (803) 737-9000

Mask A. Keel, Chief
September 8, 2020
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT
TO: File AR-19-0002

FROM: Special Agent Chandler Homey
RE: Underage Alcohol Related Incident

Mallory Beach (Victim)

COUNTY: Beaufort (07)

Introduction

On February 28, 2019, the South Carolina Law Enforcement Division (SLED) received a
request from the South Carolina Department of Natural Resources (SCDNR), to conduct
an investigation regarding a boating accident in which SCDNR believed alcohol was a
contributing factor (Attachment 1). One boat occupant, Mallory Beach, nineteen years of
age, died as a result of her injuries. Five additional underage occupants were in the boat

at the time of the accident. Two sustained great bodily injury, and the other three
sustained minor injuries. Lieutenant (Lt.) David Leslie (SLED) assigned the investigation
to Special Agent (S/A) Chandler Horney (SLED) on February 28, 2019.

C 'ALEA An Accredited Law Enforcement Agency
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Summary
On March 4, 2019, S/A Chandler Homey, S/A Matthew Walker, and Lt. David Leslie

attended a meeting at the Charleston SCDNR office to discuss the boating accident,
which occurred on February 24, 2019 at approximately 2:15 am. S/A Horney received a
copy of SCDNR’s boating accident report #19-02-0944, written by Investigator Damian
Yongue (Attachment 2). According to the SCDNR boating accident report, SCONR
responded to a single boat accident on February 24, 2019. Five occupants of the boat,
Paul Murdaugh, Connor Cook, Anthony Cook, Morgan Doughty, and Miley Altman were
found by emergency personnel on the shore of Archer’s Creek with the wrecked boat.

One occupant, Mallory Beach, was unaccounted for.

The five boat occupants on scene were described as underage and intoxicated at the time
of the accident according to Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office Incident Report 195050424
(Attachment 3). Sgt. Reynard from Port Royal Police Department listed the five
occupants as “grossly intoxicated” in his supplemental report (Attachment 4). Marine
Corps Military Police Officer Carson’s report stated “COOK/C, COOK/K [Anthony],
ALTMAN, MURDAUGH, and DOUGHTY all appeared to be intoxicated” (Attachment
5). SCDNR Investigators located several empty containers of alcohol, as well as coolers
with unopened alcohol, in the wreckage of the boat, as seen in SCDNR’s photographic
evidence log (Attachment 6). Doughty can be seen on BCSO bodyworn camera footage
stating her boyfriend [Murdaugh] is extremely intoxicated (Attachment 7). Four of the
other occupants were transported to Beaufort Memorial Hospital. Anthony Cook refused
medical assistance and remained on scene to assist in the search for Mallory Beach. Paul
Murdaugh, Miley Altman, and Anthony Cook had minor injuries. Connor Cook and
Morgan Doughty sustained significant injuries as a result of the accident. EMS Personnel
as well hospital staff that tended to the occupants also described their behavior as being
consistent with intoxication. As part of the medical treatment received, hospital staff
conducted blood draws on Paul Murdaugh and Connor Cook [several hours after the
accident]. Medical records revealed that at the time of the blood draw, Paul Murdaugh’s
BAC was .24, and Connor Cook’s was .17 (Attachment 8-9, 51-52). Miley Altman,
Anthony Cook, and Morgan Doughty’s blood was not drawn. [S/A Horney received a
copy of Miley Altman and Morgan Doughty’s medical records. There was nothing of
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evidentiary value to SLED’s investigation in these records] (Attachments 53-54). On
April 11, 2019, Dr. Mark Mercier was interviewed by S/A Horney, Inv. Yongue, and
Craig Jones [General Counsel for SCDNR]. Dr. Mercier stated he was the attending
physician at Beaufort Memorial Hospital on February 24, 2019. Dr. Mercier told S/A
Horney and SCDNR that a blood draw was not medically necessary for Miley Aliman or
Morgan Doughty, and therefore was not ordered (Attachment 10).

On March 3, 2019, Mallory Beach’s body was discovered in the marsh by two civilians
assisting in the search approximately five miles from where the collision occurred, as
noted in the autopsy report from the Medical University of South Carolina [MUSC]
(Attachment 11). The two civilians immediatcly contacted SCDNR and Beaufort County
Sheriff’s Office who recovered the body (Attachment 3). According to Mallory Beach’s
toxicology report from NMS Labs, her BAC was .155 at the time of her death
(Attachment 12). The cause of death, according to her autopsy performed by MUSC,

was drowning with a contributing factor of blunt head trauma.

SCDNR Inv. Yongue and SCDNR PFC Austin Pritcher spoke with Miley Altman and
Morgan Doughty on February 25, 2019 (Attachment 13-16). They were consistent in
saying all six individuals had been drinking at and prior to the time of the accident.
Altman and Doughty advised they started drinking around 6:00 pm that evening at Paul
Murdaugh’s family’s house, referred to as “the River House”. According to Doughty’s
and Altman’s statements, Paul Murdaugh went to Parker’s 55 gas station to purchase
alcohol for the group prior to 6:00pm. After getting together at “the River House”,
Doughty and Altman stated they went to Kristy Wood’s house by way of Paul
Murdaugh’s family’s boat to attend an oyster roast. From there, they took the boat to
downtown Beaufort where two of the occupants, Paul Murdaugh and Connor Cook, went
to Luther’s Rare and Well Done, a bar located at 910 Bay St, Beaufort. According to
information Doughty provided to Agents, Anthony Cook, Morgan Doughty, Miley
Altman, and Mallory Beach all stayed on the swings near the boat landing because they
did not have fake IDs. The statements made by Doughty, Altman, and Anthony Cook
reported that once Murdaugh and Connor Cook returned to the boat, with Murdaugh
driving, they made a few “donuts” in front of the dock before heading back to
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Murdaugh’s family “River house™. On the way back to the house, at approximately 2:15
am, they crashed into a bridge on Archer’s Creek. SCDNR also provided SLED with a
copy of their interviews with Anthony Cook and Connor Cook on February 24, 2019.
Those interviews did not contain information of evidentiary value for SLED’s

investigation (Attachment 17-18).

SCDNR provided SLED with written statements from initial interviews they had
conducted on February 26, 2019. These interviews were conducted with Jake Price, the
bouncer at the door of Luther’s Rare and Well Done, and the bartender, Kayla Canavan,
who were both working the night of February 23, 2019. Price was interviewed by
SCDNR’s Inv. Yongue. He recalled that both Paul Murdaugh and Connor Cook each
handed him a horizontal SC driver’s license (Attachment 19). In Inv. Yongue’s
interview with Canavan, she stated they ordered two shots when they first came in, and
two more approximately ten minutes after that. Canavan mentioned they were already
intoxicated when they arrived. She stated Paul Murdaugh asked if she would let their
underage friends in, which she refused (Attachment 20).

At approximately 11:45 am on March 5, 2019, S/A Horney and S/A Walker arrived at
Parker’s 55 in order to pick up video surveillance footage. The manager at that location,
Quanna, informed S/A Horney they were still waiting on the footage from their main
office in Savannah, but she provided S/A Horney with a receipt of transaction number
3353268 from 5:33 pm on February 23, 2019 (Attachment 21). The Parker’s 55 receipt
showed Murdaugh purchased a 6 pack of Michelob Ultra Lime 12 oz cans, a 12 pack
variety pack of White Claw, a 15 pack of Natural Light 12 oz cans, as well as a pack of
cigarettes and a pack of gum. S/A Homey returned to Parker’s 55 on March 11, 2019 and
was able to obtain a copy of the surveillance footage. Parker’s surveillance video showed
Murdaugh entering the store, purchasing alcohol, cigarettes, and gum, and handing the
cashier a horizontal SC ID that the cashier scanned, and returned as a valid ID. From the
outer camera angle provided by Parker’s Loss Prevention office, Paul Murdaugh can be
seen putting the alcohol onto the boat, trailered to his vehicle (Attachment 22, 55). S/A
Homey attempted to call Parket’s Loss Prevention office four times in order to see if they

had a record of what ID was scanned the afternoon of February 23, 2019. S/A Horney left
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two messages between March 30 and April 3, and received a call back on April 5, 2019.
S/A Homey was contacted by Parker’s attorney, Mitch Griffith, whom S/A Horney met
with on April 4, 2019. [Griffth contacted S/A Horney on an unrelated matter, but Griffith
provided S/A Homey with the information sought from Parker’s Loss Prevention]. Mitch
Griffith informed S/A Horney Parker’s did not hold the names from scanned ID’s, but the
date of birth was retained. The date of birth from the ID scanned was [JJJj 1996.
Griffith gave S/A Horney a printout of the information scanned (Attachment 23).

On March §, 2019, at approximately 12:30 pm S/A Horney and S/A Walker met with
Michael Stavac, the manager of Luther’s Rare and Well Done, located at 910 Bay St. in
Beaufort, in order to obtain surveillance video and receipts from the night of the accident.
Agents were able to view the video on that day, and SA Horney received a burned copy
from Stavac on March 13, 2019. The surveillance video obtained showed Paul Murdaugh
and Connor Cook enter the location shortly before 1:00 am. The bouncer at the door,
identified as Jake Price, can be seen requesting both of their identifications. Upon
checking their ID’s, he let them enter the bar. They purchased two liquor shots “jaeger
bombs” and two liquor shots “lemon drops” from the bartender, identified as Kayla
Canavan, at approximately 12:58 am as seen on the receipts (Attachment 24). They paid
for their alcohol and left the bar at approximately 1:07 am as seen on Luther’s Rare and
Well Done security footage (Attachment 25, 57).

On March 6, 2019 at 10:45 am, Inv. Yongue, Inv. Brock, and S/A Horney met at the
accident location on Archer’s Creek to meet with Connor Cook, Anthony Cook, Morgan
Doughty, and Miley Altman to discuss the accident and conduct further interviews. At
approximately 12:30 pm, Inv. Yongue made contact with Morgan Doughty by telephone
who stated none of them were coming to the interview. Inv. Yongue rescheduled the
interview for March 8, 2019. On March 8, 2019 at approximately 12:00 pm, Inv. Yongue,
Inv. Brock, and S/A Homey again met in order to re-interview the occupants of the boat.
Once again, they failed to attend the scheduled interview. Inv. Yongue made contact with
Anthony Cook by phone, who stated his cousin Connor Cook was not driving the boat at
the time of the accident, and that Connor Cook had personally told him this. Anthony
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Cook further stated that once he gave Inv. Yongue his written statement, he did not want
anything more to do with the investigation (Attachment 26, 27).

On March 6, 2019 at 5:00 pm, Inv. Yongue, Inv. Brock, and S/A Homey conducted
several interviews with Beaufort Memorial Hospital staff who had been on duty February
24, 2019 (Attachment 28-37). They interviewed Scott Jones, a security guard posted
outside Paul Murdaugh’s room, Karen Taylor, Paul Murdaugh’s nurse, and Elizabeth
Warren McAlhaney, Connor Cook’s nurse. Scott Jones stated Murdaugh’s grandfather
said “he’s drunker than Cooter Brown” in reference to Paul Murdaugh. Jones stated
Murdaugh was acting intoxicated, but he did not get close enough to smell alcohol
(Attachment 28). Karen Taylor, Murdaugh’s nurse, stated he was grossly intoxicated and
told her he had been drinking and doing drugs all night long (Attachment 29). Elizabeth
Warren McAlhaney, Cook’s nurse, stated Connor Cook smelled strongly of alcohol, and
admitted to drinking (Attachment 30). S/A Horney obtained the footage from the
hospital the morning of February 23, 2019. There was nothing of evidentiary value to
SLED’s investigation found on this footage (Attachment 59).

SLED was notified by SCDNR investigators that Connor Cook, Morgan Doughty and
Miley Altman had retained attoreys. Morgan Doughty and Miley Altman had both
retained Attorney Mark Tinsley.

On March 7, 2019 at approximately 12:00 pm, S/A Homey arrived at the Beaufort Police
Department (BPD) to meet with Captain George Erdel in order to see if BPD had footage
from the “day dock™ in downtown Beaufort. BPD had several cameras in that area. S/A
Homney and Captain Erdel reviewed the footage showing the boat’s arrival to, and
departure from, the downtown area. This video showed Paul Murdaugh and Connor Cook
as the only occupants who approached the bar area (Attachment 38, 56). As they were
walking back to the boat, Paul Murdaugh can be seen stumbling. S/A Horney received a
copy of this footage from BPD.

Based upon statements made by Doughty and in reference to occupants attending an

oyster roast, agents made contact with Kristy Woods to conduct an interview. On March
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11, 2019 at approximately 3:30 pm, S/A Homey and S/A Walker arrived at the Wood’s
house at _Beaufort, SC 29906. Kristy Woods stated to agents that she
only saw Miley Altman with a beverage in her hand, but Altman immediately discarded
the can due to her parents - attendance at the oyster roast. Wood never saw any other
occupants with alcohol in their hands and stated that no alcohol was provided or available
at the party (Attachment 39-41). [Agent’s Note: According to Doughty and Wood’s
statements to Agents, occupants of the boat left somewhere between 11:30 pm and 12:00
am and headed to downtown Beaufort].

On March 15, 2019 at approximately 3:00 pm, S/A Horney obtained search warrants for
the social media accounts of all the boat occupants from the Beaufort County
Magistrate’s Office. On March 19, 2019, the search warrants were submitted to
Facebook, Instagram, and Snapchat custodians of records. On April 18, 2019, Instagram
and Facebook sent results of the search warrants to S/A Horney. On May 14, 2019,
Snapchat returned results of the search warrants. Nothing of evidentiary value to SLED’s
investigation was discovered during the review of these social media records

(Attachment 42).

On April 10, 2019 at 2:30 pm, S/A Homey and S/A Walker met with Morgan Doughty
and her attorney, Mark Tinsley. Tinsley told agents Doughty had information on the ID
Paul Murdaugh used to purchase alcohol the night of the accident. Doughty advised
agents that she had accompanied Paul Murdaugh on February 8, 2019 to the Thomas
Cooper Library on the University of South Carolina’s campus. She was present when
Paul Murdaugh met with his brother, Alexander “Buster” Murdaugh, so that Alexander
Murdaugh could give Paul Murdaugh his identification. After follow up questions from
Agents, Doughty stated that was not the first time the brothers had done this. She told
agents Alexander Murdaugh would often give his ID to his younger brother, Paul
Murdangh, and Alexander Murdaugh would then use his passport to purchase alcohol.
The reason they did this was so Paul Murdaugh could also have an over 21 ID to
purchase alcohol (Attachment 43). According to the Department of Motor Vehicles
license records, Alexander Murdaugh’s date of birth is - 1996 (Attachment 44).
Doughty also spoke to Agents about the party at the Wood’s house. She stated that
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Crystal (Kristy) Wood did not supply them with any alcohol, but was aware the underage
individuals were drinking. Additionally, she stated Kristy Wood tried to stop them from
leaving the party and stay at her house for the night because they were intoxicated. [Ms.
Doughty gave copies of photos from her cell phone to S/A Horney showing repeated
events where Murdaugh and his family were drinking, and a prior oyster roast at the
Wood’s house where underage individuals were drinking] (Attachment 58). Agents
asked if Doughty knew what ID Connor Cook used to purchase alcohol and she stated
she did not know, Agents attempted to obtain a written statement from Ms. Doughty,
however her attomey Mark Tinsley would not consent to a written statement citing the

fact that it would contradict her statements to DNR.

Conclusion

The following statements are based upon facts obtained during the investigation:

o There was a boating accident the morning of February 24, 2019.

o There was one casualty as a result of this accident, and two instances of great bodily
injury.

e The BAC results from three of the occupants show they were under the influence of
alcohol at the time of the accident.

» All six of the occupants were under the age of 21.

s Statements from the occupants confirm the six occupants of the boat drank alcohol for
several hours prior to the boat accident.

e There was alcohol purchased with a valid SC ID from Parker’s 55 by Paul Murdaugh.

¢ The occupants drank alcoholic beverages at the Wood’s house during the oyster roast,
the Wood’s did not provide the alcohol, but were aware the underage occupants were
drinking.

e Photos and statements confirm Paul Murdaugh and Connor Cook purchased alcohol
under the age of 21 from Luther’s Rare and Well Done after IDs were checked by
employees.

e Paul Murdaugh did have an ID in his possession which, when scanned at Parker’s,
reflected his brother Alexander Murdaugh’s date of birth at the time of these events.

¢ Itis unknown what ID Connor Cook was using to purchase alcohol at the time of these

events.
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On the morning of the accident, Morgan Doughty, Miley Altman, Anthony Cook, and
Connor Cook all provided SCDNR with written statements. Anthony Cook wrote a
subsequent statement before refusing to cooperate further with the investigation.
Morgan Doughty attended an interview with SLED, but did not provide a written
statement. All other attempts to obtain statements or interview Miley Altman or Connor

Cook were unsuccessful.
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Attachments

Request for investigation from SCDNR
SCDNR Incident Report
Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office Incident Report (Includes body recovery statements)
Port Royal PD Incident Report
Marine Corps Military Police Incident Report
Law Enforcement Photographic Evidence Log from SCDNR
Bodyworn Camera Footage (on disc 1 of 2)
Screenshot of Medical records for Paul Murdaugh
Screenshot of Medical records for Connor Cook
. Memorandum of Interview with Dr. Mercier
. Autopsy Results for Mallory Beach
. Toxicology Results for Mallory Beach
. SCDNR Interview statement from Miley Altman
. SCDNR Secondary statement from Miley Altman
. SCDNR Interview statement from Morgan Doughty
. SCDNR Secondary interview from Morgan Doughty
. SCDNR Interview statement from Anthony Cook (transcribed by Michael Brock)
. SCDNR Interview statement from Connor Cook
. SCDNR Interview statement from Jake Price
. SCDNR Interview statement from Kayla Canavan
. Parker’s 55 Receipt
Security Images of Paul Murdaugh at Parker’s 55
. Printout of Scanner information from Parker’s 55
. Luther’s Receipts
. Luther’s Security image stills
. Anthony Cook statement to SCDNR
. Memorandum of Interview Anthony Cook
. Memorandum of Interview Scott Jones
. Memorandum of Interview Karen Taylor

. Memorandum of Interview Elizabeth McAlhaney-Warren



31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40

41.
42,
43.
44,
45.
46.
47.
48.
49,
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
55.
56.
57.
58.

59
60

. Memorandum of Interview PA Strickland-Callaghan

. Memorandum of Interview Linda Blount

. Memorandum of Interview Hannah Finn

. Memorandum of Interview Dwayne Jenkins

. Memorandum of Interview Ronald Klopp

. Memorandum of Interview Lupe Moreno

. Memorandum of Interview Laura Kent

. Security image stills of occupants arriving/leaving Beaufort Day Dock
. Kristy Woods Statement to SLED

. Kristy Woods Memorandum of Interview

Kristy Woods Statement to SCDNR

Social Media search warrants and results (on disc 1 of 2)
Morgan Doughty memorandum of interview with SLED
SCDMYV Record for Richard Alexander Murdaugh, Jr.
SCMDV Record for Miley Altman

SCDMYV Record for Mallory Beach

SCDMYV Record for Anthony Cook

SCDMYV Record for Connor Cook

SCDMYV Record for Morgan Doughty

SCDMYV Record for Paul Murdaugh

Paul Murdaugh Medical Records (on disc 1 of 2)
Connor Cook Medical Records (on disc 1 of 2)

Miley Altman Medical Records (on disc 1 of 2)

Morgan Doughty Medical Records (on disc 1 of 2)
Parker’s footage (on disc 1 of 2)

Beaufort Day Dock footage (on disc 1 of 2)

Luther’s Rare and Well Done footage (on disc 2 of 2)
Photographs from Morgan Doughty

. Hospital footage (on disc 2 of 2)

. Interview and Case notes
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On April 10, 2019 Special Agents Chandler Horney and Matthew Walker with the South
Carolina Law Enforcement Division met at the Law Offices of Tupper, Grimsley Dean
and Canaday in Beaufort, SC at 2:30 pm to interview boat occupant Morgan Doughty
with her attorney, Mark Tinsley present.

S/A Horney began by asking how Morgan was feeling and how her hand was doing. She
showed Agents her hand, explaining that her fingers were crooked and were unable to
straighten or have much movement. She has an appointment with a doctor soon, and may
have to have additional surgery on the hand, she will definitely have to have physical
therapy.

Doughty went on to inform agents that on February 8, 2019, she went to Columbia to
meet her boyfriend, Paul Murdaugh, at the University of South Carolina. They met up
with his brother, Alexander “Buster” Murdaugh at the Thomas Cooper Library on
campus. At this time, Alexander gave Paul his driver’s license with a birthdate of
4/11/1996. Morgan stated this was not the first time Alexander has given Paul is driver’s
license, and that Alexander will use his passport as identification when Paul has
possession of the license. She also said his parents were aware of this, and they were only
angry that Alexander would carry around his passport all the time, not that Paul was
using his brother’s driver’s license to purchase alcohol, and they never told them not to
do this. She and Paul dated for three years so she was around his family relatively
frequently.

In reference to the night of the boat accident, February 23, 3019, Morgan stated she
worked that day, got off at 6:00 pm and her friends were all waiting for her to get to Paul
Murdaugh’s house in Chechessee. They had purchased alcohol beforehand, and when she
got there they had already all been drinking. By 7:00 pm they were on the boat, by 8:00
pm they had arrived at the Wood’s residence for the oyster roast the Woods’ were having
that evening. Morgan stated she did not open the cooler so she does not know what was
inside. She and Miley and Mallory all got their alcohol from the boat coolers, she does
not know where the boys got their alcohol due to the fact that they had separated while at
the house. She stated Kristy Woods did know that the youth were drinking, she had made
comments to her daughter, Madison Woods, about being uncomfortable with the youth
drinking but did not ask for it to stop. Morgan also said she had a conversation with
Kristy with a drink in her hand and Kristy said nothing about it.

Around midnight they left the Woods house, she said everyone was visibly intoxicated at
this point. Paul wanted to go to a bar in downtown Beaufort, Luther’s. No one else
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Record of Interview:
Karen Taylor

March 7, 2019

Present during the interview of Karen Taylor were SCDNR Investigator Michael Brock, SLED Agent Chandler
Horney and Beaufort Memorial Compliance Officer Allison Coppage. Ms. Taylor was the nurse for Paul Murdaugh
at the hospital on the night of the incident. Ms. Taylor’s initial observation of Paul included that he was only
wearing boxers and that he was grossly intoxicated and belligerent. Ms. Taylor stated that he appeared to be the

" nostint ed and rativeof  einvolved. Ms. d that eandw to

why she sking q Ms. Tay  escribed Paul as e mos agers to th

the emergency room. According to Ms. Taylor, Paul kept saying that “Y’all should be doing your jobs and looking
for my friend.” Ms. Taylor said that Paul got out of the bed and disconnected the monitors at least three times.
When Ms. Taylor asked Paul about his alcohol consumption he initially responded with five to six beers. He then
continued with he had been drinking and doing all kinds of drugs all night. Ms. Taylor recalled that Paul would
make a statement and when she would ask him about the statement he would not remember making the
statement. Paul’s grandfather and father arrived approximately ten minutes after Paul. Ms. Taylor stated that
Paul’s father asked an SCONR officer multiple times if he had reason to believe that Paul was driving the boat.

Ms. Taylor said that Paul’s grandfather remained mostly by the bedside but that Paul’s father was in and
out of the room. Ms. Taylor noticed that Paul's father spoke with Connor’s parents and after the conversation
they told Connor not to §ay anything. Ms. Taylor got the impression that the concern was staying out of trouble
rather than what occurred. Ms. Taylor stated that Paul’s father was agreeable with the physician’s
recommendations. Ms. Taylor did not interact with any other patients other than taking supplies to Morgan'’s
room.
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Case Number: 19PR04467

Officer:066426 REYNARD, STEVEN Date Entered/Changed: 02/24/2019  Reviewer: Review Date:

DETAILED STATEMENT OF INVESTIGATION: Officers Notes:

Dispatch advised of a water emergency regarding a boat collision that occurred on Archer's Creek near the bridge on
Malecon Drive, with one passenger from the boat missing. I requested dispatch notify Marine Rescue of the incident
and have them respond to Archer's Creek.

Port Royal officers, and Beaufort County Sheriffs Office deputies, responded to the bridge on Malecon Dr and made
contact with the passengers from the boat. Initial information was taken by the BCSO deputies who were on scene prior
to Port Royal officers. Prior to my arrival BCSO had several deputies search the bank of the water for the missing
passenger, their efforts met with negative results, BCSO case #198050424. I arrived on scene and assumed incident
command. A description of the missing passenger, identified as Mallory Beach, was relayed to dispatch, and the fire
department and EMS were dispatched to the scene. Contact was made with the remaining 5 passengers of the boat who had
gotten ashore. I observed that all of the passengers were grossly intoxicated, I directed the BCSO deputies on scene
to begin collecting information from the passengers on the boat. While speaking with the passengers BCSO deputies
were unable to determine initially who the driver of the boat was, however, it was later determined that the boat was
either being driven by Paul Murdaugh or Connor Cook.

I checked the scene and observed a center console fishing boat, bearing SC registration #SC6998BU on the rocks under
the bridge. I observed that there was blood in the main compartment of the boat and that the left side of the boat
had a large split in the hull from the impact with a pylon in the water. I used my department issued cellular
telephone to photograph the scene, which are attached to this report.

DNR was contacted and requested to respond due to the collision having occurred on the water way. Parris Island PMO
and The US Coast Guard was notified of the incident and requested to respond to assist in the search for the missing
passenger, Parris Island PMO informed me that their fire department was putting their boat in the water to assist with
the search. I observed that Marine Rescue, PMO fire department arrived on scene with their boats and began the search
for the missing passenger, however, their efforts to locate the passenger were hampered by heavy fog. I was contacted
by US Coast Guard who informed me that due to the heavy fog their airborne assets would not be able to launch,
however, their marine assets would be arriving on scene shortly. I observed the US Coast Guard arrive on scene with
their boat and informed them of the VHF radio frequency being used by Marine Rescue to assist in coordinating their
search efforts. I contacted Port Royal Command Duty (Ssgt Dowling) and informed him of the incident and the current
search for the missing passenger. He informed me that he would begin making contact with the other command staff to
inform them of the incident.

Beaufort County EMS responded to the scene and determined that the passengers of the boat required further evaluation
at the Beaufort Memorial Hospital and transported them without incident, however, Keith Cook (passenger), refused
transport due to the missing person being his girl friend. I was met on scene by DNR agent Henderson, who informed me
that one of his agents had responded to the hospital for interviews of the passengers. I briefed Henderson of the
incident and current findings, to include possible drivers of the boat, and transferred incident command to him
without incident. He informed me that he was having additional DNR resources dispatched to the scene to assist with
the search of the missing passenger. At approximately 0530 hours Marine Rescue determined that they were going to
suspend their search for the passenger until day break. DNR agent Henderson determined that he no longer needed
assistance from Port Royal and BCSO and we were released from the scene without further incident.

Passenger List:

Mallory Beach (Missing)
DOB F L B, 3

Keith Cook

DOB QUiaREey
Connor Cook (Possible Driver)

DoB RN

Miley Altman

DOB AN

Paul Murdaugh (Possible Driver)

DOB A

Morgan Doughty

DOB_ QNN
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INCIDENT REPORT SUPPLEMENTAL Page #:

Case Number: 19PR04467

Officer:086285 DOWLING, JOAB Date Entered/Changed: 02/26/2019  Reviewer: Review Date:

DETAILED STATEMENT OF INVESTIGATION: On 02/25/2019, at approximately 1620 hours, Officers from South Carolina
Department of Natural Resources arrived at the Police Department to utilize our interview room. Their interview was
video recorded. On 02/26/2019, the video was collected from the server and entered into Bvidence. I informed SCDNR
BSgt. Yongue of its availability.

At approximately 1240, Yongue arrived and collected a copy of the video. See attached Property Receipt.
On 02/27/2019 the video footage from responding officers was downloaded from the server and entered into Evidence.

SCDNR Officer Hammond was informed of its availability and arrived shortly thereafter and collected a copy. See
attached Property Receipt.
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Beaufort County Sheriff's Office

Deputy Report for Incident 195050949

Nature: Assist Other Address: 50 MARINA BLVD; PARRIS

ISLAND GTWY BOAT LANDING

Location: PR15

Twn Port Royal SC

Offense Codes:
Received By: Hinson, C How Received: O Agency: BCSO
Responding Officers: Disbrow, B, DNR
Responsible Officer: Disbrow, B Disposition: CLO 02/25/19
When Reported: 16:31:55 02/24/19 Occurred Between: 16:31:50 02/24/19 and 16:31:50 02/24/19
Assigned To: Detail: Date Assigned: **/**/**
Status: Status Date: **/**/** Due Date: **/*%/**
Complainant:
Last: First: Mid:
DOB: k¥/**/** Dr Lic: Address:
Race: Sex: Phone: City: ,
Offense Codes
Reported: Observed:
Circumstances
Responding Officers: Unit :
Disbrow, B D11
DNR DNR
Responsible Officer: Disbrow, B Agency: BCSO
Received By: Hinson, C Last Radio Log: *% *% % dox ok Ak
How Received: O Officer Initiat Clearance: RPT Report
When Reported: 16:31:55 02/24/19 Disposition: CLO Date: 02/25/19
Judicial Status: VIEW Occurred between: 16:31:50 02/24/19
Misc Entry: lbs and: 16:31:50 02/24/19
Modus Operandi: Description : Method :
Involvements
Date Type Description
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03/03/19
03/03/19
03/03/19
02/24/19
03/14/19
03/12/19
03/07/19
03/07/19
03/03/19
03/14/19
03/13/19
03/07/19
03/07/19
03/04/19
05/21/19
05/15/19
05/02/19
05/02/19
04/04/19
04/02/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/18/19
03/15/19
03/07/19
03/06/19
03/01/19
02/28/19
02/27/19
02/26/19

Name
Name
Name
Cad Call
Property
Property
Property
Property
Property
Evidence
Evidence
Evidence
Evidence
Evidence
DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

CAMPBELL, KEITHT

CAMPBELL, JENNIFER M
CAMPBELL, KENNETH TERRENCE
16:31:55 02/24/19 Assist Other

Compact Disc 0
Compact Disc 0
Compact Disc 0
Compact Disc 0
CD-ROM 0

CD OF 911 AUDIO & LOGS

DVD of In Car Video
DVD-R OF ICDVS
DVD-R OF ICDVS
CD OF PHOTOS
Mark Tinsley
RANDELL STONEY
E. Mitchell Griffith
E. Mitchell Griffith
MICHAEL DEWITT
Francis Ervin

Molly Roecker

Billy Tyson

Jeffery Williams
Daniela Mencos

Alex Littlehales

Liz Farrell

Michael Brock
Gooding and Gooding
ASHLEY REESE
Moss Kuhn and Fleming
DNR Hammond

inv. Disbrow

Witness
Complainant
Complainant
Initiating Call
Property

Property

Property

Property

Property
Evidence Incident
Evidence Incident
Evidence Incident
Evidence Incident
Evidence Incident
Subpoena

FOIA

FOIA

Subpoena

FOIA

FOIA

FOIA

FOIA

FOIA

FOIA

FOIA

Island packet
DNR

FOIA

FOIA

FOIA

DNR

FOIA
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Narrative
SSgt. Brandon Disbrow, D8767

Synopsis:

On 02-24-19, The BCSO was asked to assist in an investigation being

handled by the South Carolina Department of Natural Resources (SCDNR), which
yield potential evidence in their investigation.

Officer's Actions:

On 02-24-19, I, SSgt. Brandon Disbrow, was the On-Duty Investigator and
received a phone call from Capt. Purdy. I was briefed on an investigation being
handled by the SCDNR which involved six individuals that where involved in a
boating accident, and of the six individuals involved in the accident, one was
ejected and has not been located (SCDNR Case: 19-02-0944). I was informed that
SCDNR Officer Michael Brock was handling the investigation and was requesting
assistance with forensic processing of the boat. I also learned that the
forensic processing was to focus on collecting evidence to help determine who
the operator of the boat was during the accident. I was asked to meet with
SCDNR Officer Brock at the Parris Island Boat Landing (21 Marina Blvd, Beaufort,
SC 29902) at 1630 hrs.

At approximately 1630 hrs, I met with several SCDNR Officers at the
aforementioned boat landing and viewed the boat in question. I was informed
that SCDNR Officer Brock was enroute to the boat landing with a search warrant
he obtained from a Magistrate. After SCDNR Officer Brock arrived we discussed
the forensic processing that needed to be done. It was determined that SCDNR
Officer Brock would photograph and take possession of all of the collected
evidence. I was requested to fingerprint the area around the driver's seat, and
then to collect DNA swabs from various locations with the focus on attempting to
determine who was operating the boat.

Fingerprint Processing:

I noted that the boat's sides around the driver's side was a coarse
white plastic, and it did not appear that it would be smooth enough to yield
fingerprints but it was processed anyways. I processed the driver's console,
the left side of the interior portion of the boat (closest to the driver's
seat), the vinyl driver's seat, the metal railing around the driver's console,
the GPS, and the plexiglass windshield. I did not locate any fingerprints.
There were two White Claw alcohol cans in the back of the boat, which were open
and mostly empty, I processed the cans for fingerprints but did not locate any.
I collected these cans as evidence (one flavor was a Black Cherry and the other
was Ruby Grapefruit).

I also learned that since the boat was recovered and it was in the open

air from the time of the accident until the time of the fingerprint processing.
During this timeframe there were periods of rain in Beaufort County.

DNA Processing:

There were several areas of suspected blood on the boat's surface which

these areas were swabbed. I noted that the driver's seat, which was directly
behind the console, could sit two people, but the steering wheel was on the left
side and the throttle was situated towards the middle of the console. There was
railing that went around the driver's console and it would be reasonable for a
person sitting in the driver's seat to use the railing to help stand up, or to
help themselves balance if the boat was in motion.

I processed the following areas for DNA (11 total): Suspected blood on
exterior port side, suspected blood on trim near damage on port side, swab of
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steering wheel, swab of the boat throttle, swab of the plexiglass windshield,
swab of left side rail of driver's console, swab of right rail of driver's
console, swab of Garmin GPS, swab of suspected blood on right side floor of
boat, swab of seat in front of steering wheel, swab of right side of driver's
seat.

**Note**
Each swab was placed into separate small white envelopes, and then
placed into a larger envelope.

I then transported all of the evidence (two alcohol cans and the eleven
swabs) to the Northern Investigations Office where SCDNR Officer Brock met me.
All of the evidence bags were completed and I sealed them. I then signed over
all of the evidence to SCDNR Officer Brock and provided him this case number.

There was no further action by SSgt. Brandon Disbrow.
Case Status: Administratively Closed

SSgt. Brandon Disbrow, D8767
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Supplement
Kline, D. - 3/3/19

General:

On 3/3/19 around 1335 hrs I was dispatched to a call in reference to a boater
in the Broad River that located what they believed to be a female body in the
marsh. Several BCSO Deputies responded. I responded to the Broad River boat
landing and made contact with one of the complainants, Jennifer Campbell, and
conducted an interview.

Interview of Jennifer Campbell:

Jennifer advised her husband, Kenneth Campbell, and his brother, Keith
Campbell, were out on their boat attempting to look for the missing female. She
said she was supposed to meet them at the Broad River Boat Landing so they could
pick her up. She then advised that when she noticed all of the law enforcement
vehicles arriving that someone must have found her.

Interview of Kenneth Campbell:

Kenneth advised that he made contact with a DNR officer that advised he was
allowed to voluntarily look for the missing female. Kenneth stated he and his
brother Keith launched from the Broad River Boat Landing. He said he took the
first creek on the right and shortly after entering that creek his brother Keith
yelled out that he could see someone laying in the marsh. Kenneth further
explained that his brother Keith was sitting on the boats "T-Top" while he was
driving.

Kenneth advised once he got closer he noticed what he believed to be a
white female laying face down about 6 feet from the edge of the water inside the
marsh line. He described a white female, covered in mud, with brown boots on and
a sweater covered in mud. When asked, Kenneth advised he could not tell the
color of the sweater or any other detail due to the amount of mud. Kenneth said
he called 9-11 and kept his boat as close as possible until DNR responded to his
location.

Interview of Keith Campbell:

Keith advised he was on the top of his brother's boat when they left the
Broad River Boat Landing. Keith stated they went into the first creek and saw
the female just off the bank of the water. Keith described a female fully
clothed with boots on.

Officer Actions:

I gathered all available information. DNR Officer Pope and I arrived at the
Broad River Boat Landing simultaneously. DNR advised that they had several boats
in the water and were heading to Kenneth's location. DNR then requested
assistance shutting down the boat landing and pier for the recovery of the found
body. My supervisor was notified, responded to my location and contacted the on
duty BCSO investigator and on duty command duty officer. I requested all of the
people at the boat landing and pier to leave the area in reference to an ongoing
investigation. All parties not directly involved left without incident and the
Boat Landing was secured. I requested Kenneth and Keith to complete a written
statement form to which they complied. Coroner David Ott arrived on scene
shortly after along with Inv. Abell. No further actions taken.

Attachments:
1. Written Statement of Kenneth Campbell
2. Written Statement of Keith Campbell

Collected Evidence:
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NONE

Disposition of Electronic Recordings:
1. Cpl Kline - Patrol Vehicle #23550 - IDVS Activated.

Kline, D. - 3/3/19 - K3026
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Supplement
LCpl Carroll, J. 3/3/19

Officer Actions:

On 3/3/19 at 1535 hours I responded to Oakview Dr. in reference to a boater
finding a body in the creek between Habersham Creek and the Broad River Landing.
DNR was on scene and requested BCSO assistance in clearing out the landings
parking lot. Once the landing was secure I positioned my vehicle above the
bathrooms and activated the blue lights to increase visibility.

It was later determined the pier also had to be cleared, and I began turning
away all vehicles coming into the landing. After the pier was cleared I
positioned my vehicle above the access roads bridge and turned away all
unnecessary incoming traffic. After the body was recovered and out of the water
I was advised to open up the road. No further action taken.

Evidence Collected:
NONE

Attachments:
NONE

LCpl Carroll, J. 3/3/19 C2818
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Supplement
R. Byrd 3/3/19
Beaufort County Sheriff's Office
Supplemental Narrative

General:

On 3/3/19 (Sunday) at approximately 1335 hrs Deputies responded to 1050
Robert Smalls Parkway, Beaufort SC 29906 (Broad River Boat Landing) in reference
to assisting Department of Natural Resources (DNR), in reference to possible
human remains found near the landing.

Details of Supplemental Narrative:

Upon arrival at the Broad River Boat Landing, I began speaking to DNR officer
Pope who advised that he was speaking to officers that were in contact with the
human body, approximately 1/4 mile from the landing. Sgt Guise began delegation
of duties, and I was assigned to assisting with retrieval of the remains. Myself
and Sgt Guise were provided a boat ride by DNR officer Carter to the location of
the deceased. I observed the deceased to be laying face down, wearing brown
shoes, muddy blue jeans, a dark in color muddy jacket, with blonde hair. I
observed her left arm to be bent and under her.

Sgt Guise remained with the deceased with DNR officers, and I returned with
Officer Carter to the boat landing. Deputy Corner Ott and Investigator Abell
then boarded the boat. Upon returning to the location, I began taking digital
images of the area with Inv. Abell's digital camera, including the direction we
were traveling, as the creek's branch out in different directions. Upon arrival
at the deceased location, I took digital images of the body. I then assisted DNR
with placing the body in a yellow body bag, supplied by Deputy Corner Ott:
Investigator Abell assumed the photo documentation as I assisted, and will be
submitting all taken photos for evidence. I then boarded the boat, with DNR
officer Lt. Michael Thomas, DNR Officer Baxter, and the body bag, and arrived
back at the landinag.

NOTE:

The boats GPS coordinates indicated the body to be at the below listed GPS
coordinates.

N: 32.20.159

W: 80.45.608

EVIDENCE:

A 911 request was submitted and given unique ID 2019-03-03T16 47 13.
A request was submitted for officers ICDVS and given unique ID
2019-03-03T17 44 29.

DISPOSITION OF ELECTRONIC RECORDINGS:
Byrd - 38379 - Activated

Date, Time, Reporting Officer
3/3/19, 1748, R.Byrd (B9452)
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Supplement
03/03/2019, 1613 hours, LCpl Abell

Beaufort County Sheriff's Office
Supplemental Narrative

Case Information:

On 03/03/2019 at 1335 hours, BCSO responded to the Broad River Boat

landing, Beaufort, Beaufort County, SC 29906 in reference to a missing boater
(Port Royal Case # 19PR04467 and SCDNR Case # 19-02-0944). Subsequently the
recovery of the missing boater was conducted.

Investigation:

On 03/03/2019 at 1406 hours I was contacted by SSgt Draisen in reference

to the missing boater (Mallory Beach) possibly being located in the vicinity of
the Broad River Boat Landing. SSgt Draisen request I respond to the incident
location. MSgt Fraser was contact while I was responding to the boat landing and
briefed on the incident. Upon arriving at the incident location I was briefed by
Cpl Kline on advised of the boaters that made the discovery. Refer to Cpl
Kline's supplemental report for interviews and written statements.

After being briefed I was contacted by Sgt Guise whom was on a DNR boat
at the incident location. He advised another DNR boat was coming to the boat
landing to get Coroner Otts and myself. I then met with Coroner Otts and
discussed the recovery operation. Coroner Otts and I were then transported to
the recovery location (32"20'.159N / 080"45'.608W).

Note: According to Google Maps the entrance to the creek is approximately 1754
feet north of the boat landing and the recovery location is approximately 4107
feet (straight line) NNE from the boat landing.

While in transit to the recovery location and with the use of my camera
LCpl Bryd took approach photographs. While at the recovery location my camera
was again was used by LCpl Byrd to take recovery photographs due to him standing
on land. The remaining photographs were taken by me from the SCDNR boat. A
female body was recovered and transported back to the Broad River Boat Landing
by SCDNR and Coroner Otts took possession of the body and then had her
transported to his facility.

Once back at the boat landing I spoke with SCDNR Investigator Michael

Brock. He advised based on the physical and clothing description that the female
recovered was Mallory Beach. I informed Brock that a copy of the photographs
would be available for him through BCSO Evidence. Port Royal Officer Reynard
whom is the original case officer was on scene and made aware of the recovery.

The family notification will be conducted by Coroner Otts and SCDNR.

Note: BCSO Evidence was emailed requesting a copy of Property Number 112998 be
prepared and SCDNR Investigator Brock was C/C'd on the email.

Disposition of Collected Evidence:
Property Number 112998: Recovery photographs of missing boater.

03/03/2019, 1613 hours, LCpl Abell

-LCpl Abell-
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Supplement
Guise 03-03-19

Synopsis:

On 02-24-19, the BCSO was asked to assist in an investigation being

handled by the South Carolina Department of Natural Resources (SCDNR), which
yielded potential evidence in their investigation.

Officer's Observations and Actions:

On 03-03-19 (1334), BCSO responded to 1000 Robert Smalls Parkway ( Broad
River Boat Landing), Burton, SC in reference to BCSO Dipatch receiving a report
of a civilian possibly locating a deceased female in the marsh. The civilian
stated they were in a creek, Jjust off the shoreline near Skoski Court, Burton,
SC.

At 1349, I made contact with Kenneth Campbell via telephone, 843-422-6209,
where he informed me that he was in a creek just off the Broad River and not too
far from the Broad River Boat Landings. He informed that he and his brother
were just trying to help in locating the missing boater, Mallory Beach.

At this time, I was standing on a tidal creek pier at 6815 Oakmont Dr.

( Oakmont Subdivision). From this location and could see a male standing on top
of a hard top style roof of a boat. He was waving his arms. I was informed by
the caller that it was his brother that was with him and waving. I could see a
DNR boat making their way to that location, from the Broad River and getting in
contact with them. Kenneth informed me that he was hanging up the phone because
DNR pulled up to him. Once I observed this, I made my way back to the Broad
River Boat Landing.

At 1400, arrived on scene and made contact with DNR Officer Pope who advised
that DNR Officers Thomas and Baxter were in contact with a deceased female in
the marsh line of a creek, West of the Broad River Boat Landing. They believed
it to be the missing boater, Malory Beach.

At 1405 two boaters arrived at the boat landing, Kenneth Campbell and Keith
Campbell, who advised they left DNR with the body and returned to the landing.
They were directed to speak with Cpl Kline and provide written statement. (See
Cpl Kline's Supplemental Report).

At 1415, LCpl Byrd and I boarded a DNR boat with DNR Officer Dupree and made
our way to the location of the body. This location was approximately 1/4 mile
West of the Broad River Boat Landing. Upon arrival, at the location of the
body, it was documented by LCpl Abell that coordinates were 32.30.159N and
080.45.608W via DNR's boat GPS.

At 1422, LCpl Byrd and I arrived on scene with DNR Officer Thomas and DNR
Officer Baxter who were on a small WarEagle boat. The boat was pulled up next
to the bank of the north side of the creek. There was a female body that was
clothed and laying face down on the bank in the marsh line. A short time, I
stayed with DNR Officers Thomas and Baxter as LCpl Bryd and DNR Officer Dupree
returned to the landing to make contact with BCSO Investigator Abell, DNR
Investigator Officer Brock, and Deputy Coroner Ott to bring them to our
location.

At 1435, LCpl Byrd, LCpl Abell, DNR Officer Investigator Brock, Deputy
Coroner Ott, and DNR Dupree arrived. BCSO Investigator Abell assisted in the
investigation, took photographs of the scene, and assisted Deputy Coroner Ott.
The deceased female was loaded onto the DNR's WarEagle boat.

At 1449, 1LCpl Abell, DNR Officer Brock, Deputy Coroner Ott, DNR Dupree
and I returned in DNR Officer Dupree's boat. DNR Officer Thomas, Baxter, and
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LCpl Byrd made their way back to the Broad River Boat Landing with the deceased.

At 1455, LCpl Abell, DNR Officer Brock, Deputy Coroner Ott, DNR Dupree and
I arrived at the Broad River Boat Landing in DNR Officer Dupree's boat.

At 1458, DNR Officer Thomas, Baxter, and LCpl Byrd arrived at the Broad
River Boat Landing with the deceased's body.

SSgt Draisen was informed of our findings and this supplemental report was
completed.

Agencies Involved:

South Carolina Department of Natural Recourses
Beaufort County Sheriff's Office

Beaufort County Coroner's Office

United States Cost Guard

Beaufort Marine Rescue

g W NP

Guise 03-03-19
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Property

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:
Property Number:
Item:

113615
Compact Disc

$0.00

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc

$0.00

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Moreira, A

03/13/19
$0.00

**:**:** **/**/**

ONE (1) CD WITH 911 AUDIO, 911 LOG, RADIO LOG, RADIO TRANSMISSIONS & CAD

REPORT
113563
Compact Disc

$0.00

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc

$0.00

ok ok [k

Owner Applied Nmbr:

Model:
Quantity:
Serial Nmbr:
Color:

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

Bibbins, M

ok [k [k
ok [k [k

$0.00

ok ok ek skok [k fkok

(1)DVD-R # 13228 FROM OFFICERS ICDVS VEHICLE # 40285/38326

113157
Compact Disc

Owner Applied Nmbr:

11/06/19
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Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:
Property Number:
Item:

Brand:

Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:
Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:
Comments:

Property Number:
Item:

Brand:
Year:

Meas:

Total Value:
Owner:

Model:
0 Quantity: 1
Serial Nmbr:
$0.00 Color:
BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc Tag Number:
$0.00 Officer: Bibbins, M
UCR Status:

Storage Location:
Status Date: **/*%/**
Kok K [ * Date Recov/Revd: *%/*%/**
Amt Recovered: $0.00
Custody: **:**:** **/**/**

(1)DVD-R # 13166 FROM OFFICERS ICDVS VEHICLE # 38422/38379/FOIA COPY

113158
Compact Disc Owner Applied Nmbr:
Model:
0 Quantity: 2
Serial Nmbr:
$0.00 Color:
BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc Tag Number:
$0.00 Officer: Bibbins, M
UCR Status:

Storage Location:
Status Date: **/**/**
ok [k Date Recov/Revd:  *%/**/*%*
Amt Recovered: $0.00
Custody: **:**:** **/**/**

(2)DVD-R # 13163/13164 FROM OFFICERS ICDVS VEHICLE #
23550/38379/38430/40287/40345/38422/38335

112998
CD-ROM Owner Applied Nmbr:
Model:
0 Quantity: 1
Serial Nmbr:
$0.00 Color:
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Agency:

Accum Amt Recov:
UCR:

Local Status:

Crime Lab Number:
Date Released:
Released By:
Released To:
Reason:

Comments:

BCSO Beaufort County Sheriff's Ofc
$0.00
CD Compact Discs

ok ok [k

Tag Number:
Officer:

UCR Status:
Storage Location:
Status Date:

Date Recov/Revd:
Amt Recovered:
Custody:

RECOVERY PHOTOGRAPHS OF MISSING BOATER

Abell, B

03/03/19

ok [k [k

$0.00

ok ok ok ok [k fkok
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Name Involvements:

Complainant : 81147
Last: CAMPBELL
DOB

Race: W Sex: M

Complainant : 76781
Last: CAMPBELL
DOB

Race: W Sex: F

Witness : 75443

DOB:

Race: W Sex: M

First: KENNETH

Phone: (843)422-6209

First: JENNIFER
Dr Lic:

Phone: (843)441-1505

First:
Dr Lic:

Phone: (843)441-7338

Mid:
Address:

City:

Mid:
Address:

City:

Mid:
Address:
City:

TERRENCE

1031 OTTER CIR; BATTERY
SHORES

City of Bft, SC 29902

M

1031 OTTER CIR; BATTERY
SHORES

Beaufort, SC 29902

T
1810 BATTERY PARK DR
Port Royal, SC 29935 1504

11/06/19



506094
HA&;\@P Of?«/

Date 37 / 3/ / 9 PageNo.

STATEMENT OF:
Name’J\ SngETH 1. CPW\ PBELL. :
Add: 34226207

T s, m % qé&ﬁ& ﬁso(ﬁm/%:ﬂm Cefg(&{ﬁ

Fuad : & 2 )
Qbmj 20 nain - ﬁ*dg T éw
Jd ”/u Bﬂj%,w ACUJ] ‘ - ; ) ﬁ{Q /6/@‘/
f 5 // ﬂ&d / jf
L PaV: ] mili -]
—_ L2 o / ,
 emnd wd 2
Ll N s )
Fad aud rachil AR weniied v
EERN ~
— \\ \\
AN \ ~
N N
—1 -7/1/(/_' /'M \

SF816



YS0%50 44
D)W‘I

A1t 0
Date zz;;éy/q Page No.
STATEMENT OF:

Name: Lo, 74, Lanpricl DO H:
Add: SS C:

W:

Me Qun /i i Lyotde Lound o Lar /4,( v, [)//4’\6
FO/Q Onpn___h il Ll be, ,,J( Livs T /'//pﬁ/ a Ff b/oa.///‘: e
Jands Lng . s n/l/ iy //‘\l /'41‘2.«/ AepXS pu

SF816

AR



CAD 2:26:03 a.m. duration 13:02
911 call

0:03 Paul, what bridge is this?
Background: Mallory! What the fuck is she going to do?

0:21 We’'re in a boat crash on Archer’s Creek
Dispatch: Where about on Archer Street?

Connor: In Archer’s Creek. The only bridge in Archer’s Creek.
Dispatch: Archer Street?

Connor: Archer’s Creek.

Dispatch: Archer’s Creek.

Connor: near Parris Island

Dispatch: Ok. What's going on?

Connor: It's by Parris Island.

Dispatch: Right. What’s going on?

Connor: We're in a boat crash.

Dispatch: You're in a what kind of boat?

Connor: A boat crash.

Dispatch: A bo boat? Did you say a boat crash?
Connor: A boat crash.

Dispatch: Ok. So you’re at a dock?

Dispatch: Hello? Are you at the dock?

Connor: No. We just crashed. In a boat.

Dispatch: Alright. Are you in the water or are you ... ?
Connor: We're in the boat.

Dispatch: Ok.

Connor: We have someone missing.

Dispatch: Ok. Hang on one second, ok?

Connor: Alright by ...

Dispatch: No

Connor: ... Archer’s Creek.

Dispatch: Archer’s Creek, right?

Connor: Paul? Paul, what is this bridge called?
Dispatch: Ok. How far ...?

Background: Mallory! (crying) Mallory! Mallory!
Connor: Please send someone.

Dispatch: | know, we’re coming, we’re coming, we're coming. Ok?
Dispatch: Well how far offshore are you?
Background: Where the fuck is Mallory? Please! (??7?)
Connor: In Archer’s Creek.

Dispatch: Right. How far out?

Connor: There’s only one bridge in Archer’s Creek.
Dispatch: You're by the bridge?

Connor: There’s only one bridge in Archer’s Creek.
Background: Mallory!!! Oh my fucking God.



Dispatch: Ok. Well who's that in the background?

Connor: There’s six of us and one is missing.

Dispatch: Ok. There’s six, one is missing.

Dispatch: So do you guys have life jackets on?

Connor: Ma’am, we have more than enough life jackets, but we’re on the bank.

Dispatch: Who's missing?

Connor: Uh, a female named Mallory Beach is missing.

(2:41) Background: Y’all, there’s so much blood. Oh my god. I'm losing so much fucking blood.
Background: What've you done?

Dispatch: What’s your name?

Connor: My name is Connor Cook.

Dispatch: Ok. What kind of a boat are you on?

Connor: We're on a Sea Boss.

Dispatch: On a Sea Boss? Did you crash into the bridge?

3:07 Dispatch Background: DNR...Going to call....??

Connor: Ma’am. We’re under the only bridge in Archer’s Creek.

Dispatch: Ok. So you’re under the bridge. Ok.

Connor: Yes. There’s only one bridge on Archer’s Creek.

Dispatch: Ok. You said there’s one missing female?

Connor: Only one bridge.

Dispatch: Right. So you’re under the bridge.

Connor: Yes, ma’am. If you come to Archer’s Creek, there’s only one bridge and we’re under the
bridge.

Dispatch: Ok. So you all have jackets though, right?

3:41 Connor: Yes, ma’am. We’re all on the bank except one. We can’t find the last one.
Dispatch: Ok. Ok, we're on the way. You need to give me as much information as you can, ok?
Connor: Ma’am?

Dispatch: | need to get as much information from you as | can. You're under the bridge. Is
everybody there? Is anybody injured?

Connor: We can’t. | mean. There’s one that’s injured and there’s one that’s missing.
Dispatch: Ok. Just stay on the line with me because we’re getting your coordinates.
Background: Fuck that.

Dispatch: Ok. So where’s the closest ... the closest point on land would be. | know you’re in
Archer’s Creek.

4:36 Background: Listen to us.

Dispatch: Would it be Parris Island or ... ?

Connor: Ma’am. | can’t hear you talking.

Background dispatch: The boat crashed into a bridge.

Dispatch: What's the closest point on land?

4:48 Background: She fell off or died? | fucking hate you right now. ??7?

Connor: Um. The bridge that goes onto Parris Island, that's where we’re at.

Connor: We’re in a boat.

Dispatch: Right. Under the bridge. | gotcha.

5:04 Background: And fuck Mallory.

Dispatch: We're on the way. Just stay on the line with me, ok?

Background: Please, please hurry. Please!

5:25 Background: (screaming) Where the fuck is Mallory?!



Background: (more screaming) Mallory!!!

Redacted from 5:37 to 5:39?72?7? It’s dead space.

Dispatch: Stay put. We'll be there as soon as we can, ok?

Dispatch: So just to confirm. You crashed into the bridge, correct?

Connor: Ma’am?

Dispatch: You did crash into the bridge just to confirm, correct?

Connor: No.

Dispatch: What? Ok, so, what did you crash into?

Connor: Ma’am. | can barely hear you.

Dispatch: What did you crash into? You didn’t crash into the bridge. Did you crash into like
rocks, or ?

Connor: Ma’am, we don’t know.

Dispatch: Ok. Just tell everyone to just try to stay as calm as they can. Ok? | know it’'s hard. But
you guy have got to try to stay calm and not disturb the boat. Are you guys taking on water?
Connor: Ma’am? Ma’am, we’re on the bank.

Dispatch: Ok.

Connor: All 5 of us are on the bank, but we’re missing one person.
Dispatch: Right. Ok. So the boat is on the bank?

7:17 Background: At what point do we care, bud?

Do the math.

Please, baby.

Paul, | don’t know.

Dispatch: Ok. The female that’'s missing. Is she black, white or Hispanic?
Connor: She’s white.

Dispatch: Ok. And what does she look like?

Connor: She has blonde hair. Her last name is Mallory Beach.

Dispatch: Ok, what'’s the last name?

Connor: Beach.

Dispatch: Ok. And what was she wearing?

7:52 background: Connor’s high as a fucking plane. That’s all the fuck does (??7?7?)
Connor: What was Mallory wearing, y’all?

Background: A pink shirt ...

Connor: Pink shirt. Suede booties.

Miley: I'm freaking out right now, Connor.

Connor: What, Miley?

Miley: She’s in the water!

Connor: She’s in the water.

Dispatch: Can you see her?

Connor: No, we can’t. She’s missing. Like nobody knows where she’s at.
8:18 Dispatch: Ok. When'’s the last time you saw her?

8:20 background: Come on. Ain’t nobody doing nothing. (inaudible)
Dispatch: How old is Mallory?

8:30 Background: I'm losing so much blood. I'm soaked in my blood. (??7?)
Connor: She’s 19.

Background: Connor, where are they? They’ve gotta hurry.

8:41 | got wood all up in my arm. Please hurry.

Dispatch: They’re coming



Background: Morgan, they are. They are.

Dispatch: They’re on the way, yep.

Background: Mallory’s missing. (crying)

Background: | have wood all in my body.

Look here.

Please, everybody stay calm.

Background: What post did we hit?

Dispatch: yes, everybody try to stay calm.

Connor: I'm trying

Dispatch: | know, | know. It's tough. We're getting there as soon as we can.
Background: Paul, | don’t know.

Dispatch: Do you think there’s injuries? Do you guys need an ambulance?

Connor: yes. Please hurry.

9:44 Background: Connor! (inaudible)... arm. It hurts! It fucking hurts!

Background: Ma’am. Let me talk. Let me talk to her.

Could you hurry?

Dispatch: | was wondering about injuries. If anyone’s injured, what type of injuries?
Connor: Um. We have one that’'s missing and one that’s injured.

Dispatch. Ok the injured party is ...?

Connor: There were six of us and one is missing.

Dispatch: We understand. The one that is injured. What type of injury does she have?
Connor: They have a finger that’s hurting really bad and it's bleeding.

Dispatch: Ok. And is that a female or a male?

Connor: A female.

Dispatch background: Was she wearing a life jacket?

Dispatch: Was the missing person wearing a life jacket?

Connor: No, ma’am. She was not.

11:21 Dispatch: Alright, we should be getting there anytime. Can you hear sirens?
Connor: Me and my girlfriend are s

tanding on the highway.

Dispatch: You’re going to stand on the highway? Ok.

Connor: Yes, ma’am. Me and my girlfriend are standing on the highway before you get to the
bridge.

Connor: Coming onto Parris Island. Me and my girlfriend.

Dispatch: From which way?

Connor: Like coming to Parris island. Me and my girlfriend are standing on the bridge.
Dispatch: So if you’re coming from like Walmart to Parris Island?

Connor: Right.

Connor: If you would send an ambulance to Parris island. Ma’am, we’ll be waiting on the road.
Dispatch: What are you wearing?

Connor: I’'m wearing a blue and white sweater and my girlfriend’s wearing a yellow sweater.
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